
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., October 24, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, October 17, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, October 22, 2023 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 21, 2023   

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1.    Intent of Award …………………………………………………………………………            1 - 4 

  IFB#GHURA-23-18; Railing Replacement of Twelve GHURA 83 Units 

2.    Intent of Award …………………………………………………………………………            5 - 8 

  IFB#GHURA-23-19; Sinajana Arts Center Concrete Sidewalk 

3.    Intent of Award …………………………………………………………………………            9 - 12 

 IFB#GHURA-23-20; Website Maintenance and Development 

4.    IFB#GHURA-23-16; Renovation and Up-grade of Basketball  

 Court, Toto Gardens Discussion 

5.    IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-GPDESS; Guam Police Division Eastern 

 Sub Station Discussion 

 
V.  OLD BUSINESS 

1. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluations ………………………        13 - 48 
2. Change Order #2 

                   IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery 
                   Center for Women in Tiyan, Guam 

VI. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. FY2022 Audit Report ………………………………………………………………………     48 - 180 

 

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates    

a. Capital Fund Program ………………………………………………………………..         181  

b. A/E Division 

                                   



 

 

 

                                                                                             

 VIII.    GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, November 14, 2023  

@ 12:00 p.m.  

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST • TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2023
21CLASSIFIEDS

����������������������
��
���	�

��������������������

FOR RENT
LEVIS/GUESS GUAM JOB OPENINGS:

CALL 671-646-0510/11

JOB ANNOUNCEMENT

BOOKKEEPER,SALES ASSOCIATE, OFFICE ASSISTANT, 
HANDYMAN, WAREHOUSE ASSISTANT, PLUMBER

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
(Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru)

CHamoru Land Trust Commission
(Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru)

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 1:00PM

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 S. Marine Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, 2nd Floor Tamuning, Guam. 
Public Comments may be made at cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov To view the meeting virtually, log on to GovGuam 

Live-YouTube or CLTC’s Facebook page or Google Meet joining info Video call link: meet.google.com/ney-cydw-rgv

Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on October 12, 2023 and October 17, 2023 Government of Guam Public Notice 
Portal, CLTC’s Facebook Page, and on CLTC’s website at https://dlm.guam.gov/chamoru-land-trust-commission/

I. Call to Order – Certification of a Quorum Present 
II. Certification – Public Notice Requirements

a. Guam Daily Post (10/12/2023 and 10/17/2023)
b. Guam Public Notice Website (https://notices.guam.gov)

III. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Board Meeting August 30, 2023

IV. Correspondence
a. Email received on September 25,2023 from Department of 
Public Health regarding Cannabis friendly event – “Prutehi I Amot 
Miyu” on September 30,2023 at Sagan Kotturan CHamoru (SKC)
b. Email received on September 25, 2023 from the Office of 
Senator Joe San Agustin on Draft Legislation re: Guam International 
Country Club (GICC)
c. Email received on September 26, 2023 from Guam Waterworks 
Authority (GWA) regarding Potential Grant Opportunity: Tank and 
Waterline Agat Umatac
d. Email received on September 26, 2023 from Mr. Joey 
Crisostomo regarding progress on License Agreement

V. Administrative Director’s Report – Discussion and/or Action
a. Public Hearing Bill 16-37 – Solicit competitive bids for mass 
grading and mineral extraction of a portion of Lot 5412, Mangilao
b. Public Hearing Bill 177-37 - Establishing the aggregate amount 
ensured to CHamoru Land Trust Commission for the beneficiary 
loan guarantee fund.
c. Document No. 37GL-23-0987 – Office of the Governor- 
Appointment and Supporting Documents for Jeffrey John P. 
Ibanez, Member, CHamoru Land Trust Commission. 

VI.  Old Business – Discussion and/or Action
a. Continuation of Loan Guarantee Request for Board Action from 
October 12, 2023 Special Meeting 

1. Eric John Naputi Delfin
2. Ted R. Cruz
3. Shirley Pangelinan Gagan
4. Philbert John Flores
5. Jonathan Blas Samiliano
6. Clarissa Ignacio Tudela

7. Joanne S. Cruz
8. Anita A. Cruz
9. Joaquin Taienao Manglona
10. Joseph John Guzman Mendiola
11. Genevieve L. Aldan (fka Genevieve Hernandez 
Chiguina)
12. Breanna Beth Finona Sablan
13. David Vincent Pangelinan
14. Bernice Tudela Nelson
15. Joylene Rene T. Blas Limes
16. Josie Lynn R. Camacho
17. Nadine Roberto Domingo
18. Carmen Diane Crisostomo
19. Tony Eloy Cruz
20. Jose Navaro Bautista
21. Emailina Chargualaf Mariano
22. Vicente J. Cruz

VII. New Business – Discussion and/or Action
a. Additional Loan Guarantee Requests

1. Jose Chargualaf Quinata
2. Billy P. Cruz
3. James Roland Mathis
4. Pauline Therese T. Acosta

b. Constituent Matters
1. Alicia Hualde (AKA Alicia Mendoza) - Ratify Lease 
Agreement; Relocation; Transfer of Lease Agreement
2. Eric Naputi Delfin – Approval to Build 
3. Bernie Ranque – Qualifications, Emergency Transfer 
of Lease

VIII. Legal Counsel – Discussion and/or Action
IX. Public Comment(s)
X. Announcement(s)
XI. Next Meeting – Thursday, November 16, 2023 at 
1:00PM, CLTC Conference Room, Suite 223, 2nd Floor, 
ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals requiring special accommodations or 
services should contact Dexter Tan, (671) 300-3296 x204 email; dexter.tan@cltc.guam.gov

This ad is paid for by CLTC funds

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Topic: GHURA BOC Meeting, Tuesday, October 24, 2023 @12:00P.M.
Time: Oct 24, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81304518234?pwd=bbaISAM1f6PcnOrUSwi4wNgWomJ8fT.1
Meeting ID: 813 0451 8234 • Passcode: 053450
Watch Youtube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 21, 2023
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-18; Railing Replacement of Twelve GHURA 83 Units
2. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-19; Sinajana Arts Center Concrete Sidewalk
3. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-20; Website Maintenance and Development
4. IFB#GHURA-23-16; Renovation and Up-grade of Basketball Court, Toto Gardens Discussion
5. IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-GPDESS; Guam Police Division Eastern Sub Station Discussion

V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluations
2. Change Order #2 for IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery Center for Women
     in Tiyan, Guam

VI. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
1. FY2022 Audit Report

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
       1. Project Updates
       2. Division Updates
            a. Capital Fund Program
            b. A/E Division
VIII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
       1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, November 14, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.
IX. ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.

For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, please contact 
Chief Planner –Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701. 

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam

1962

• GUAM
 H

OU
SI

NG
 AN

D URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY • 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

GHURA

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.

 

LUJAN & WOLFF, LLP
Attorneys at Law
Suite 300, DNA Building
238 Archbishop Flores Street 
Hagåtña, Guam 96910
Telephone (671) 477-8064/5
Facsimile (671) 477-5297 
Attorneys for Petitioner
Pauline San Nicolas Gumataotao

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE 

OF
PETER PEREZ ROSARIO,

Decedent.
PROBATE CASE NO. PR0232-21

SECOND AMENDED
NOTICE OF HEARING

THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU 
ARE NOT REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT 

UNLESS YOU DESIRE.
   1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that 
Gregory Robert Rosario has filed a Petition for 
Letters of Administration.
    2. A hearing on the petition will be heard 
onWednesday, October 25, 2023, at 11:20 a.m.
      3. To attend or to participate in the hearing, you 
may appear in person at the Guam Judicial Center, 
appear remotely at https://guamcourts-org.zoom.us 
and enter Meeting ID: 864 4387 2213 and Passcode: 
JEMI, or call into the courtroom at 671-300-6703 at 
the designated hearing time. For connectivity issues, 
you may contact Jannette Samson at (671) 475-0141 
or email jsamson@guamcourts.gov.
Dated : October 5, 2023

SOPHIA SANTOS DIAZ
Clerk of Court, Superior Court of Guam

By: /s/ Alice B. Mendoza
Chamber/Courtroom Clerk

19 – WELDER/FITTER                                                      $19.87 PER HR.*
Min. Req: High school diploma (may be foreign equivalent), 1 year of experience as a welder/fitter in shipyard environment, 
and ABS (American Bureau of Shipping) certified or its equivalent. 
Duties: Weld components in flat, vertical, or overhead and restricted positions. Recognize, set up, and operate hand and 
power tools common to the welding trade, such as shielded metal arc and gas metal arc welding equipment.

*Special Wage Rate: Work to be performed on DPRI-funded projects and projects covered by Davis Bacon, Service Contracts Act, 
and/or Executive Order 14206 will be paid no less than the indicated wage rate but may be paid more where special rates apply.
Successful applicant must be able to obtain U.S. military base access pass. Off-island hires must complete a health screening prior 
to working on Guam.

Benefits:  Round-trip airfare for off-island hire; Meals and lodging provided @ $80.00 per week. 

Successful applicant must be able to obtain TWIC card and military base access. Employees are required to take and pass a 
substance abuse test after hire.

The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The recruitment associated with this job offer is closely 
monitored by the Department of Labor. Qualified, available and willing U.S. workers are highly encouraged to apply.  Should you qualify 
for the job and are not hired, you may appeal with the Department of Labor who will independently review matter.

Apply in person at the American Job Center
414 W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building Hagatna, Guam

Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword: 2023-091

AVAILABLE JOBS FOR ELIGIBLE U.S. WORKERS



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST • SUNDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2023
21CLASSIFIEDS

We do Extension Concrete or Tin Roofing
Cabinet, Tiles, Painting, Fencing & Plumbing

Just call 671-929-2251
Artemio Calma

PO Box 8275 Tamuning, Guam 96931

FOR HIRE

SUMITOMO MITSUI CONST. CO., LTD.

Apply at 105-107 IBC Building, J.L. Baker St.
Harmon Industrial Park 

Phone No: (671) 649-7521~24  |  Fax: 649-7550
Email:  c.enoki@smccguam.com

Employment offers conditioned upon ability to obtain and maintain military base access

JOB OPENINGS
HEAVY EQUIPMENT MECHANICS
HEAVY EQUIPMENT OPERATORS
REINFORCING METAL WORKERS

CEMENT MASONS
PIPEFITTERS
CARPENTERS 

NORTHERN GUAM SOIL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD

Agenda

BOARD & PARTNERS MEETING - NORTHERN DISTRICT
Tuesday, October 24, 2023 - 4PM

UOG College of Natural & Applied Sciences Bldg., Room 104

I.  Call to Order
II.  Roll Call
III.  Reading of Last Meeting Minutes
IV.  Officers’ Report
      • District Chair’s Report
      • Treasurer’s Report
  
V.  Partner’s Reports
VI. Old Business
      • RREA Project Update
      • 2025 Agricultural Census Update
      • Federal & NACD Grants

VII. New Business
      • FY2023 Budget
      • Farm Labor Stabilization and Protection Pilot Program
           (FLSP) 
      • Congressional HR Bill 4700 Districts Response to         
           Unfair Shipping Practices
VIII. Miscellaneous Matters 
IX. Next Meeting:
      • Regular Board Meeting: November 7, 2023
      • Joint Region Meeting: Tentative for November
X. Adjournment

For Zoom Meeting details or Special Accommodations, feel free to contact us!

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT FOR

FIREFIGHTER TRAINING FACILITY
MARINE CORPS BASE CAMP BLAZ, FINEGAYAN, GUAM

 

Pursuant to the Council on Environmental Quality Regulations implementing the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the United States Department of the Navy (the Navy) gives 
notice of availability of its Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) for the proposed construction 
and operation of a Firefighter Training Facility (FFTF) at Marine Corps Base Camp Blaz, 
Finegayan, Guam. The Navy has determined the project would result in less than significant 
impacts on the quality of the human or natural environment. The Final Environmental 
Assessment (EA) provides analyses of the environmental consequences of the action.

The Final EA and FONSI are available for review and download at the following website: 
https://pacific.navfac.navy.mil/About-Us/National-Environmental-Policy-Act-NEPA-Information/. 
Hard copies of the Final EA and FONSI are available for review at the Dededo Public Library 
and the University of Guam Robert F. Kennedy Library.

For additional information please contact: ATTN: EV21 Project Mgr., Firefighter Training 
Facility EA, Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command Pacific, 258 Makalapa Drive, Suite 
100 Joint Base Pearl Harbor-Hickam, HI 96860-3134, or by email: GuamFFTF@hhf.com. 

In print or online we have you covered at The Guam Daily Post!
email at krista@postguam.com for inquiries.

Need to get your
message out there?
Our sales team has new opportunities for you!

Topic: GHURA BOC Meeting, Tuesday, October 24, 2023 @12:00P.M.
Time: Oct 24, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81304518234?pwd=bbaISAM1f6PcnOrUSwi4wNgWomJ8fT.1
Meeting ID: 813 0451 8234 • Passcode: 053450
Watch Youtube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – September 21, 2023
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-18; Railing Replacement of Twelve GHURA 83 Units
2. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-19; Sinajana Arts Center Concrete Sidewalk
3. Intent of Award for IFB#GHURA-23-20; Website Maintenance and Development
4. IFB#GHURA-23-16; Renovation and Up-grade of Basketball Court, Toto Gardens Discussion
5. IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-GPDESS; Guam Police Division Eastern Sub Station Discussion

V. OLD BUSINESS
1. Summary of Executive Director, Board Evaluations
2. Change Order #2 for IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery Center for Women
     in Tiyan, Guam

VI. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
1. FY2022 Audit Report

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
       1. Project Updates
       2. Division Updates
            a. Capital Fund Program
            b. A/E Division
VIII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
       1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, November 14, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.
IX. ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.

For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, please contact 
Chief Planner –Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701. 

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam

1962

• GUAM HO
US

IN
G A

ND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY • 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

GHURA

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 1 of 9 
 

        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., September 21, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board 
of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:03P.M., Thursday, September 21, 2023 
at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Vice Chairman Sanches. He indicated that 4 members 
of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 
 

Viewed 
virtually via 

Zoom: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81304518234?pwd=bbaISAM1f6PcnOrUSwi4wNgWomJ8fT.1 

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                       Virtual   □             In-Person □              

Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual   □             In-Person 🗹 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                                  Virtual    □             In-Person □   

Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                     Virtual   □              In-Person 🗹             

Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual   □             In-Person 🗹 

Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual   □             In-Person  🗹                 
 

GHURA Staff  Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director  🗹       Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator □              

Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director   🗹      Sonny Perez, AE Manager 🗹  

Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 🗹                  Norma San Nicolas 🗹  
Frances Danieli, Controller □                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager □ 

Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner🗹        Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager □ 

Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator 🗹   Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement SMA              Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager  
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager □                        Jolyn Terlaje □ 

Nicole Alejandro □                                                Miguel Fernandez 🗹 

Michael Racuyal 🗹                                                 Ervin Santiago 🗹                  
 
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig, GHURA’s Legal Counsel 🗹 
 

Public None  
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, September 14, 2023 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, September 19, 2023 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus06web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F81304518234%3Fpwd%3DbbaISAM1f6PcnOrUSwi4wNgWomJ8fT.1&sa=D&ust=1697438700000000&usg=AOvVaw1kKkkSbfYP3O7iYcuhG5IV
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag


GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 2 of 9 
 

 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY VICE CHAIRMAN SANCHEZ 
 

III. Approval of Previous Board Minutes: GHURA BOC Mtg. Minutes, August 8, 2023 

 

[134/23] Commissioner Delia moved to approve the board meeting minutes of 

August 8, 2023, subject to corrections. Commissioner Corpus seconded the motion. 

There were no objections. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. New Business: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2023-021- 
Resolution approving 
the Above-Step 
Recruitment for the 
Accountant I Position 
(FISCAL Division)  

[135/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Director Napoli read Resolution No. 
FY2023-021, page 1 of 101 in the 
September 21, 2023 GHURA BOC 
packet.  

• She stated that Dr. Bersamin, HR 
administrator and Mrs. Frances 
Danieli, GHURA Controller, were 
available for questions from the 
board. 

• Dr. Bersamin added that she had 
thoroughly examined the above-step 
recruitment requirements and is 
supportive of Ms. Sunny Eun Cho’s 
above-step recruitment. 

• Mrs. Frances Danieli, Controller, 
stated that Ms. Sunny Eun Cho’s has 
excellent work ethic and agreed with 
HR’s recommendation to approve the 
above-step recruitment of Ms. Sunny 
Eun Cho.  

Commissioner Delia inquired about whether 
this position was brought to the board for 
approval in the past. Dr. Bersamin confirmed 
this as the position had been recently vacated. 
She added that GHURA does plan to report to 
the board, as requested, to discuss the re-
evaluation of GHURA’s pay scale. As a team, 
they continue to balance the fiscal 
responsibility, as well as the HR responsibility 
in trying to keep up the pace with recruiting 
and tracking of the various positions.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 3 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Deputy Director Esteves indicated that the 
resolution’s Resolved clause should read 
Above-Step Recruitment and not Above-Step 
Requirements. 

There were no further discussions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[136/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to approve Resolution No. 
FY2023-021, Resolution 
approving the Above-Step 
recruitment for the Accountant I 
position to Ms. Sunny Eun Cho, 
Accountant I at the pay grade 
Level LG4-5(D), $45,287 pa; 
$21.77 p/hr. Commissioner 
Corpus seconded the motion. 
There were no objections by the 
other board members. Motion 
passed unanimously.  

2. Resolution No. 
FY2023-022-Resolution 
amending the Public 
Housing (Property Site 
Manager) Pay 
Schedule 

 

[137/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2023-022, the 
resolution amending the public 
housing (Property Site Manager) Pay 
Schedule, page 4 of 101 in the GHURA 
BOC packet. 

• She stated that the executive 
management respectfully requested 
that the Board of Commissioners 
amend the public housing, property 
site managers pay schedule to read 
the 2023 pay schedule for housing 
management personnel attached, 
which included an implementation 
slotting that addresses internal equity 
issues and or for incumbent managers 
who fall below the new starting pay. 

• Director Napoli added that Dr. Kim 
Bersamin, HR Administrator and 
Deputy Director Esteves were 
available for questions from the 
board.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 4 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Commissioner Delia inquired about whether 
this item had been brought before the board 
in the past.  

Dr. Bersamin stated that in 2020, the late 
Director Topasna and she had gone before the 
board requesting an increase to the starting 
pay for the Property Site Managers due to the 
increase in the level of the duties and 
responsibilities. That amendment was 
approved by the board. The second part of 
that plan included new positions that were 
created. GHURA had met the disclosures and 
filings with the legislature and DOA, she stated 
that GHURA is now ready to move on to the 
new pay schedule for Pay Grade P. She 
respectfully requested that the board approve 
Pay Grade P in order for GHURA to implement 
the amendments and creations respectfully. 

Deputy Director Esteves added that Dr. 
Bersamin had to evaluate the two positions 
and apply the Hay Methodology to determine 
the pay schedule. Based on the position 
description, credibility and responsibility, 
technical know how and problem solving, the 
Hay Methodology formula came up the Pay 
Grade P.  

There were no further questions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[138/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to approve Resolution No. 
FY2023-022, amending the Public 
Housing (Property Site Manager) 
Pay Schedule. Commissioner Rice 
seconded the motion. There were 
no objections. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

3. Intent of Award-
IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-
GPDES; Guam Police 
Division Eastern Sub 
Station 

[139/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Director Napoli read the Intent of 
Award, IFB#GHURA-23-02-CDBG-
GPDESS GUAM Police Division Eastern 
Sub-Station, pages 7-8 of 101 in the 
September 21, 2023 BOC packet.  

• Based on AE Staff’s review and 
determination, GHURA is requesting 
approval from the board to issue the 
contract to IAN Corporation for the 
total amount of $4,171,892.00. 

• Funding is available under the CDBG 
program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 5 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired about 
possible reasons that the other contractors 
were unable to complete the addendums. 
Deputy Director Esteves stated that the (3) 
contractors were responsive in that they 
acknowledged the addendum, but not 
responsible in fulfilling the requirements of 
the addendum. The contractors did not fulfill 
the response requirements to be considered 
responsive and responsible. GHURA is holding 
contractors to account much more so that 
timelines are being met and GHURA is getting 
the best value for the money.  

Commissioner Rice expressed her concerns 
with IAN Construction’s Workman’s 
Compensation expiring on December 31, 2023 
and how it would affect the project in terms of 
compliance with regulations and guidelines. 
She requested that Mr. Ervin Santiago, Wage 
and Compliance Officer, stay on top the issue.  

There were no further discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[140/23] Commissioner Corpus 
moved to approve Intent of 
Award-IFB#GHURA-23-CDBG-
GPDESS; Guam Police Division 
Eastern Sub Station at 
$4,171,892.00. Commissioner 
Delia seconded the motion. There 
no objections. The motion passed 
unanimously.   

4. Intent of Award-
IFB#GHURA-23-16; 
Renovation and up-
grade of Basketball 
Court, Toto Gardens 

[141/23] Executive Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Executive Director Napoli read Intent 
of Award-IFB#GHURA-23-16; 
Renovation and up-grade of 
Basketball Court, Toto Gardens, page 
14-17 of 101 in the September 21, 
2023 BOC packet. 

• Based on AE’s staff’s Review and 
determination, GHURA is requesting 
approval to issue the contract to 
Surface Solution for the total amount 
of $694,000. 

• Funding available under the Capital 
Fund Program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 6 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired about the 
project’s estimated completion date. Mr. 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager, stated that the 
project should take about eight months.  

There were no further discussions.  

 

 

 

 

[142/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to approve Intent of 
Award-IFB#GHURA-23-16; 
Renovation and up-grade of 
Basketball Court, Toto Gardens to 
Surface Solutions in the amount 
of $694,000. Commissioner 
Corpus seconded the motion. 
There were no objections. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

5. Summary of Deputy 
Director, Board 
Evaluations 

[143/23] Executive Director Napoli deferred 
to Dr. Kim Bersamin, HR Administrator.  

• Dr. Bersamin read the summary of the 
Performance Evaluation of Deputy 
Director Esteves for the review period 
of August 20, 2022 to August 21, 2023 
representing a 12-month Annual 
Review period for the salary 
increment.  

• Pursuant to the board statute of July 
18, 2019, each board member will 
evaluate and submit ratings to HR to 
be compiled and reported back to the 
board.  

• Mr. Esteves was evaluated on (13) 
factors: Leadership, Strategic 
Planning, Communicates Vision and 
Direction, Champions Innovation, 
Promotes Ethics, Builds Relationships, 
Decision Making, Leads Change, 
Inspires and Directs Action, Promotes 
Diversity, 
Accountability/Fiscal/Fiduciary 
Responsibility, Business Acumen, 
Effective Operation & Maintenance of 
HUD Plans and Projects. 

• Mr. Esteves earned an Outstanding 
evaluation rating.  

• As a result of the overall Performance 
evaluation rating of Outstanding this 
will equate to a 2% salary increment, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[144/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to adopt the summary of 
Deputy Director Esteves’s 
Performance Evaluation and that 
his increment effective 
September 21, 2023. 
Commissioner Corpus seconded. 
There were no objections. 
Motion passed unanimously.  



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 7 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

pursuant to the GHURA board rules 
and regulations.  

6. Summary of Executive 
Director, Board 
Evaluations 

[145/23] Dr. Kim Bersamin indicated that she 
would like to afford Executive Director Napoli 
the opportunity to review and comment on 
her Performance Evaluation. She requested 
to table item #6, the Summary of the 
Executive Director, Board Evaluation. 

[146/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
acknowledged Dr. Bersamin’s 
request to table Item #6, 
Summary of Executive Director, 
Board Evaluations 

7. Resolution No. 
FY2023- 023 
Resolution approving 
the FY2024 Operating 
Budgets for Public 
Housing Asset 
Management Projects 
(AMP) GQ001000001, 
GQ001000002, 
GQ001000003, 
GQ001000004 

[147/23] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2023- Resolution approving 
the FY2024 Operating Budgets for Public 
Housing Asset Management Projects (AMP) 
GQ001000001, GQ001000002, GQ001000003, 
GQ001000004, page 95 of 101 in the 
September 21, 2023 board packet. 

Commissioner Delia inquired about why the 
budget for FY2023 for some sections in Public 
Housing the budget was increased. Deputy 
Director Esteves stated that GHURA did an 
operational analysis due to occupancy issues 
and the analysis indicated that across all the 
AMPs, additional staff was needed, such as 
the addition of Interviewer Clerks. As positions 
were filled, occupancy numbers began to 
increase.  

He added that many of the numbers indicated 
in the budget are locked in and GHURA mainly 
focuses on efficiency.  

Deputy Director deferred to Mr. Eliseo Florig, 
legal counsel, to clarify whether the board has 
the ability to amend the budget. Mr. Florig 
stated that if the board determines a need to 
amend the budget, they may.  

There was no further discussion.  

 

[148/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to approve Resolution No. 
FY2023- 023 Resolution 
approving the FY2024 Operating 
Budgets for Public Housing Asset 
Management Projects (AMP) 
GQ001000001, GQ001000002, 
GQ001000003, GQ001000004. 
Commissioner Corpus seconded 
the motion. There were no 
objections. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

8. Resolution FY2023-
024-Resolution 
approving the FY2024 
Operating and 
Administrative Budget 

[149/23] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution FY2023-024-Resolution approving 
the FY2024 Operating and Administrative 
Budget, page 96 of 101 in the September 21, 
2023 board packet. 

[150/23] Commissioner Corpus to 
approve Resolution FY2023-024-
Resolution approving the FY2024 
Operating and Administrative 
Budget. Commissioner Delia 
seconded the motion. There were 
no objections. Motion passed 
unanimously.  



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 8 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS   

1. Change Order #2- 
IFB#GHURA-09-26-
2019-CDBG; 
Construction of the 
Lighthouse Recovery 
Center for Women in 
Tiyan, Guam 

[151/23] Executive Director Napoli requested 
to table Old Business item #1 until the next 
scheduled board meeting.  

[152/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
acknowledged the request to 
table Change Order #2 for the 
next board meeting.  

2. Resolution No. 
FY2023-TA-001- 
Ratification of 
Resolution authorizing 
travel for attendance 
in the HUD-Sponsored 
Section 8 
Administrator’s 
Meeting in Honolulu, 
Hawaii on September 
8, 2023. 

[153/23] Executive Director Napoli deferred 
to Dr. Bersamin regarding the training report. 

• GHURA is looking into amending the 
travel policy and bringing it before the 
board for review. 

• Currently a training committee must 
review any type of travel resulting in 
time delays and other inefficiencies.  

• For this particular request, the item 
was tabled for the next scheduled 
board meeting.  

• The next meeting was held after the 
training date.  

• Director Napoli executed Board 
Resolution FY2019-016, delegating 
authority to the Executive Director to 
approve travel in the event of an 
emergency or lack of a board quorum. 
 

 

VI. Executive     

Director’s Report 

 

1. Project Updates 

[154/23] Executive Director Napoli 
indicated that an update on the Women’s 
Treatment Center will be presented by 
Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager.  

• Facility exterior has been painted. 

• Interior lights and walls have been 
installed. 

• HVac has been installed. 

• 85% completion by the end of the 
month. 

• December is the projected completion 
date. 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of September 21, 2023                                                                          Page 9 of 9 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

VII. General 

Discussions/ 

Announcements 

[155/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez announced 
that the next scheduled board meeting for 
the GHURA BOC is on Tuesday, October 10, 
2023.  

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated that the 
Comprehensive Compliance Monitoring 
Review (CCMR) results deemed GHURA a 
low-risk status regarding Public Indian 
Housing.  

 

VIII. Executive 

Session 

[156/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez moved to 
move into Executive Session. There were no 
objections. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IX. Adjournment 

 

 

 [157/23] Commissioner Delia 
moved to adjourn the meeting of 
September 21, 2023. 
Commissioner Corpus seconded. 
There were no objections. 
Meeting was adjourned at 
2:33PM. 

 

SEAL 

 

              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 1 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 2 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 3 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 4 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 5 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 6 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 7 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 8 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 9 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 10 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 11 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 12 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 13 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 14 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 15 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 16 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 17 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 18 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 19 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 20 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 21 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 22 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 23 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 24 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 25 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 26 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 27 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 28 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 29 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 30 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 31 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 32 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 33 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 34 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 35 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 36 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 37 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 38 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 39 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 40 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 41 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 42 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 43 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 44 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 45 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 46 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 47 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 48 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 49 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 50 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 51 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 52 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 53 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 54 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 55 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 56 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 57 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 58 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 59 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 60 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 61 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 62 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 63 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 64 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 65 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 66 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 67 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 68 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 69 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 70 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 71 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 72 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 73 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 74 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 75 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 76 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 77 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 78 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 79 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 80 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 81 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 82 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 83 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 84 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 85 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 86 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 87 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 88 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 89 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 90 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 91 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 92 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 93 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 94 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 95 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 96 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 97 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 98 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 99 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 100 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 101 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 102 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 103 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 104 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 105 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 106 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 107 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 108 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 109 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 110 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 111 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 112 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 113 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 114 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 115 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 116 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 117 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 118 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 119 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 120 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 121 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 122 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 123 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 124 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 125 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 126 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 127 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 128 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 129 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 130 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 131 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 132 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 133 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 134 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 135 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 136 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 137 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 138 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 139 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 140 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 141 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 142 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 143 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 144 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 145 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 146 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 147 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 148 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 149 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 150 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 151 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 152 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 153 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 154 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 155 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 156 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 157 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 158 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 159 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 160 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 161 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 162 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 163 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 164 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 165 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 166 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 167 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 168 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 169 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 170 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 171 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 172 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 173 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 174 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 175 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 176 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 177 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 178 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 179 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 180 of 181



  
Board Meeting of October 24, 2023 

 
PAGE 181 of 181




